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CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (gavel). .. Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. If you want to
testify, please come up and sign in with the ladies in front. You will be given
three minutes to testify. We will tell you when you have reached the three-minute
mark and then we're going to ask for you to conclude. Because we're using the
Community Center tonight and not the school library or Hale Kupuna, you will
notice there's a lot of echo.
So, I would ask iJ we all can help out each other, give each other the courtesy of,
of being quiet while the person speaks, and then before we start I'm going to
introduce all the Members that are here this evening. We have Mr. Mike Molina
from Haiku, Paia; we have Mr. Dain Kane who Chairs the Council, he's from
Wailuku District; next to Dain is Joe Pontanilla from the Kahului District; and next
to Joe is Jo Anne Johnson, she's from the West Maui District; and then we have
Mr. Robert Carroll from the East Maui or Hana District.
Mr. Nishiki, South Maui; Mr. Mateo from Molokai; and Ms. Tavares from
Upcountry, Kula were not able to be with us this evening, but they send their best
regards to you the people of Lanai.

ITEM NO.1:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)

CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we thank you for being here. You may give any comment you
wish, good, bad, indifferent to the proposal that is set before us in the Mayor's
Fiscal Year 2005 Budget, which means it starts on July 1st of this year, 2004, and
it ends June 30 th , 2005, okay.
And then we also have from Office of the· Mayor, Mr. Agsalog, our Budget
Director, okay. Now, this is the Council's opportunity to listen to you on what has
been submitted by the Mayor for Lanai or any other County program as well as
other things that are not in the budget that you feel is important to your
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organization or to the people of Lanai. That's why we want to hear from you this
evening.
And if you have other comment, there is always your opportunity to either send it
to us, come to the Council's office right next door, and the staff will be happy to
assist you in getting your, your, your thoughts and comments sent to, sent to the
Maui office, okay. So, you have additional opportunity to do so.
Okay, any questions. When we call your name, please come forward. Our
microphone stand has been broken, so the mike is on the chair. Grab the mike,
give us your name, if you represent an organization, and tell us to the best of
your ability what you want us to pay attention to this evening, okay.
Lanai, you, you're the fourth community. We've gone to Molokai, we've gone to
Kula, and we've gone to West Maui, Lahaina. So, Lanai is number four.
Tomorrow we'll be in Paia and then Wednesday we'll be in Hana. So, we
continue to go through all of the districts every year. So, this evening this is your
turn, Lanai, to give us your thoughts.
Okay, first person is Lucena Nicolas. If you would come forward, please .
. . •BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ••

MS. NICOLAS: Hello, my name is Lucena Nicolas. I work for Lanai Human Service
Alliance/Mental Health Kokua. We are in partnership with CD at the Coa.lition
Drug Free Lanai.
CDFL has been a great asset for our community. They have made drug
awareness on Lanai possible. I personally know of two individuals that have
gotten tremendous help from them. I ask that you support their request of
$62,000.00 per year for two years.
We are also in partnership with Women Helping Women. Through Lanai,
Representative Beverly, has been doing a fabulous job. Again, I know of one
individual that has had so much help from her, because she's the type of person
that goes beyond the call of duty. We truly support their request for more
funding. Lanai really needs these two organizations. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Nicolas. Any questions for her this evening,
Members? Thank you very much for being here. Next, we have Misty Bannister.
MS. BANNISTER: Hi, my name is Misty, and I'm here to support the efforts of Women
Helping Women. And I'd like to do a testimony here for you folks.

- ':! -
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I'm a single mother of two beautiful daughters, ten and eight, and we are
survivors of domestic violence. We have been blessed to have a second chance
in life and I would like to briefly share a story with you.
For many years, we lived a life of physical and emotional abuse, torture really.
We lived in a small local town where both he and I were born and raised. Soon
after we started dating, I got pregnant with my first daughter, and he started to
become very controlling and possessive. My first beating was during my fourth
month of pregnancy, a time when most batterers begin the abuse.
I stayed with him, because I thought it was the right thing to do. Leaving him was
not an option, and I thought maybe I did do something wrong, and I did deserve
getting hit in my belly. Maybe he thought I looked too fat. I didn't have a clue,
but I knew from that point on I better be more careful as to not make him upset.
I had my second daughter two years later, and by that time abuse was normal.
Being hit during pregnancy was expected. Living with fear and being confused
was normal. I was literally brainwashed into believing by him and his family that I
must be doing something wrong even though I tried my best in all that I did for
him. My daughters and I were living with a man who should have took care of
us, and a man who should have fathered his daughters with love, respect and
guidance. Yet we feared him the most.
Out of all the common childhood fears many children experience, my daughters
feared their dad. We feared a man who should not have been feared at all.
Living in a rural area makes it extremely impossible to leave the abuser, because
you know he'll find you. You know he knows people who could find you, and if he
did you know you'd get the beating of your life.
If you're not familiar with domestic violence here'.s a sample of what I can recall
wondering what would happen tonight if you didn't make what he wanted for
dinner. Imagine preparing yourself to get hurt in specific areas. Trying to think
maybe you could tense up your body so you wouldn't get hurt. Crying yourself to
sleep, because you are forced to sleep away from your babies or being struck
from across the room while your daughters watched you.
Try to vision yourself as being children forced to sit on the couch to watch your
dad beat up your mom, because he knew that it would hurt your mom the most.
Try to imagine living with these childhood memories for the rest of your life. My
daughters will and I will too along with the guilt, because I stayed.
I stayed though, in the year 2000 I did not know help was available. Serious life
changing help. I didn't even know I was living with domestic violence. I stayed
with this man for eight more years. All I knew that if I even thought of leaving
him, he would seriously hurt me, because he said so time and time again.
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Before I end, let me say that this man was an alcoholic and ice user, a coke user,
and lastly a batterer. You must understand that all of these go hand in hand and
although battering is a separate issue, and not an outcome of the drugs or
alcohol, please be aware that more than likely a person using is a person
abusing.
My main purpose here tonight is to share with you the chance we had and this
was because of the help we received through Women Helping Women. They
immediately took us under their wing, provided us with everything we needed,
clothing, food. They gave us hope, they gave us love, protected us, kept us safe.
They even helped me get into college and helped us get our first car. All of this
and more. The shelter became our home. We learned to laugh, cry tears of joy,
and the girls were able to live and grow in peace. I can't even say enough of how
much they helped.
Here we are four years later asking you to please support Women Helping
Women and all their efforts. Please believe that they are helping women and
children every single day just like ourselves putting in countless hours of extra
support, going to court with these women, holding their hands. Please believe
that they help make the difference and without, without such an agency many
might not have the chance we had. I will forever support and be thankful for
Women Helping Women and all of their generous donors.
Thank you. And now my daughters are here -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. BANNISTER: -- and would like to share a few words with you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Misty. Is this Keani and Keohu? Hi,
thank you for being here.
.
MS. KEANI BANNISTER: Hi, everyone. I am ten years old and this is my sister, she's
eight. Thank you for listening to us tonight. Yes, it is hard to hear my mom talk
about the abuse, but I know that it is for a good cause. I know that maybe if we
talk to you all about how it feels inside, you may understand a bit more about
how important Women Helping Women is.
My sister and I were very scared being with our dad, but we loved him, and it was
so confusing and it hurt to, it hurt our hearts to see what was going on. When I
would see my mom getting hurt, I felt scared and worried about what would
happen next. Although my sister was younger than I, I knew she felt the same
way.
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MS. KEOHU BANNISTER: Every time my dad would get like that I just wanted to get a
big balloon and let it take my mom and us away. I was really scared.
MS. KEANI BANNISTER: It was really scary to go through all of that and sometimes I
felt it would never end. My dad would get so angry at my mom, and I never knew
what would happen next.
MS. KEOHU BANNISTER: I wished I could have made it stop, but I couldn't. I was so
scared, I didn't know what to do. No one seemed to help us.
MS. KEANI BANNISTER: When my mom got us out, out of all of it, I was nervous and
worried about my, how mad my dad would get, but it kind of didn't matter
anymore. I trusted my mom, and knew somehow that we were going to be okay.
When we got to Women Helping Women, they were so great. They took good
care of us, and told us that everything would be okay. Something that I've
wanted to hear so long.
MS. KEOHU BANNISTER: I felt really safe there and I didn't want to leave.
talked to us nicely and played with us. They gave us food and clothes.

They

MS. KEANI BANNISTER: Women Helping Women is important to us, because we
know that it's serious and changes people's lives. They really pay attention to
the, to all the moms and children'S and they make sure that they are okay. The
most important thing is that they kept us safe, and taught my mom how to live
violence free.
MS. KEOHU BANNISTER:
forever.

We hope that Women Helping Women will be around

MS. KEANI BANNISTER: Women Helping Women practically saved our lives.
MS. KEANI AND MS. KEOHU BANNISTER:
Helping Women. Thank you.

So, please support and help Women

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. That was very, very good. Thank you for being here
this evening. Cindy Cline.
MS. CLINE: Good evening, Maui County Council, and residents of Lanai. My name is
Cindy Cline and I'm the Deputy Director of Women Helping Women. I'm in
charge of the shelter operations, entire operations.
You know, ladies and gentlemen, domestic violence knows no boundaries. It
does not matter how rich or how poor you are. It doesn't, with domestic violence
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age, education level, religion, race does not matter.
boundaries.

Those knows no

It is for that very, this very reason that Women Helping Women provide 24-hour
hotline and emergency shelter services, as you know. It is for this very reason
that our part-time Lanai staff Beverly Zigmond finds herself responding to
domestic violence crisis situations at all hours of the day.
The most dangerous time is when a woman decides to leave her relationship.
Being available is a matter of life or death. In the month of February, Women
Helping Women received 707 calls to our 24-hour hotline. That's almost 25 a,
per day. At the highest point in February, there were 16 women and 18 children.
Out of the 18 children, six were under the age of two, two sets of twins, the
youngest being six weeks old, and the oldest age 12.
We converted the children's playroom into a makeshift bedroom and the single
women slept on the living room sofas. We have a no turn away policy, and then
we had to double up on staff. We went through nine gallons of milk in one day
not to mention the dozens cans of Vienna sausage, because that's a favorite of,
of young kids.
In the month of February, we were forced to make patrol arrangements with the
Maui Police Department when a stalker came to our shelter, came by the shelter
every morning between two and three o'clock. You know stalking is very
common and what happens is this stalker came between two and three o'clock
and the woman in the house knows, the, the sound of his car. This is extreme
psychologic, psychological abuse. Her fear fed the whole house with fear.
So, what we did was we called the Police Department. They were really great
and then they did, they did patrols at least once an hour past our shelter to make
sure. They even tried to run the partial, partial plates of the car that we saw.
Anyway, this incident raised the level of fear in the house and, you know, this is
just last month.
So, you know, then we had a phone stalker call numerous times looking for, for
their, their partner. In December, a woman came to our shelter even after she
was warned by her abusive husband that he would burn the shelter if he, if she
came. So, we took lots of extra precautions just in case. You know and he, he
also came by.
On a daily basis, women, women and children our shelter deeply traumatized by
another abusive incident. Two weeks ago we had a woman with a broken hand.
Often, we get calls from Maui Memorial emergency. Domestic violence is
dangerous, really, really dangerous. Providing a safe haven is crucial for those
who, whose fear has kept their turmoil a secret.
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For 27 years, Women Helping Women has solely provided vital, really vital
emergency shelter services --:
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. CLINE: -- for our community. Isn't it time that the Maui Council, Maui County Council
recognize the severity of domestic violence, please. You know, I urge you to help us
help our community, because, you know, for many, many years and this is very
common, you know, we all keep domestic violence a secret. You know, we need not to
do that anymore. So please help us help our community, and thank you for this
opportunity. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Cline. Questions for Ms. Cline this evening, Members?
Thank you very much for being here. Lonnie Eugene.
MS. EUGENE: Hello, aloha. My name is Lani Eugene, and in the early '80s I was literally
running for my life with my toddler daughter. I came to Maui, because my brother lived
here and sought the help from Women Helping Women. Some of the staff still work at
Women Helping Women today. That visit did change my life. I am a survivor.
Twenty years later, I am an advocate for women and children, victims of domestic
violence, and I'm the TRO program supervisor for Women Helping Women. As a
supervisor, as a TRO advocate, I meet with women on a daily basis who are seeking
safety from their abusers. Most have suffered with abuse for a long time before even
coming into our offices located in Wailuku.
In addition to preparing the restraining orders, part of our service is to accompany,
support and advocate for these women throughout the court process, which can be
intimidating for most people.
The end result varies. Some women continue with their no contact order, others
dismiss their order and reunite with their abuser, but all our clients do leave with a
safety plan, as that is our main concern to keep these women and children safe.
If a woman returns to Women Helping Women for another TRO, we will continue to
support her, advocate, and prepare another TRO for her if she wants one, and once,
again, support her through the court process.
The average time, well the average, the average time for a woman to actually leave her
husband, which she would visit, our offices at least nine times before actually leaving.
We are a non-profit agency who has been serving the community since 1977. We are
the only domestic violence agency here on Maui, and run the only safe shelter on the
island. Our Lanai advocate Beverly Zigmond plays a major role in supporting women
-8-
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and children of Lanai. She has prepared many TRO's here and have advocated for
many women. In addition, she holds support groups for victims.
The amount of work on this island far exceeds the hours she is able to work. We simply
cannot afford to hire Bev full-time. I am asking you to please consider approving the
line item for our agency. Without these funds, Women Helping Women will have a
difficult time meeting the needs of Maui County, the Island of Lanai. Women and their
children are still being abused and we need to be there for them. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Eugene. Questions for her this evening? Thank you very
much for being here. Stacey Moniz and following Stacey will be Bev, Bev Zigmond.
MS. MONIZ: Good evening, I'm Stacey Moniz, Executive Director of Women Helping Women,
and wow what a difference bringing some staff makes. I think you have a very vivid
understanding of domestic violence, and usually it's me at the Council hearing saying
can I have some money, thank you, here's why. And I don't think there's any better way
of explaining that than having them testify. And I'm really glad that I have something to
read, because "m kind of speechless.
I'm so proud of my former clients who are willing to stand up and speak. As I said, it's
hard to do that. There's such stigma and such a judgment from our community, so I
really appreciate that.
I wanted to read a quick note from John dela Cruz who lives on Lanai, and who couldn't
be here to testify himself, but he wanted to say, I support increased funding for Women
Helping Women on the Island of Lanai. The current incumbent, meaning Beverly,
occupies a part-time position. However, she expends full-time effort to provide
protection, therapy and transportation for victims of domestic on, violence on Lanai, and
for their families. So, that's him.
And I have an e-mail from a friend of mine, who I met many, many years ago at the
shelter who had to flee, to protect her child, and she's not from here. She's not from
Maui. She's from somewhere else, but she stopped in at Maui on her way to
somewhere else to protect her child. And wha~ she said, she's going to e-mail everyone
her testimony, but I told her I was going to read this anyway. If she wasn't somewhere
else, she would try to show up.
She says what no one realizes is that your assistance does not go for just a few weeks
or months. You and your organization were available to my son and myself for the
better part of 15 years from the beginnings of our painful journey to the end including
the trial that took place 15 years later.
She was charged with parental kidnapping, because she took her son out of state,
because his father was sexually abusing him. She was acquitted of those trials,
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because all of the allegations from 15 years ago were brought up, and anyway it was a
big kind of international, national trial.
She says abuse is not something that ends in one day or one month or one year. You
helped us to get away from the abuse. Gave us space to breath, to get counseling for
my son and myself, plus you gave us food, shelter and clothing, and a place to sleep
when we had nowhere else to go or turn to.
I think people don't realize the desperation that the consequences of abuse brings to the
lives of the people that are going through it. Abuse and the consequences of abuse
have horrible implications for us who experience it.
In the end, we were made out to be the criminals until the trial that occurred showed
that there were mistakes that occurred in the system that did not protect women and
children and are still occurring today.
Women and children need a safe space and place to be to decide what to do with their
lives for the next few moments -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. MONIZ: -- and in our case the next few years. I think that after all this time there would
be an understanding that the depths of despair that women and children go through.
Most of the time through no fault of the, of their own.
Without the help of Women Helping Women on Maui, I just don't know what would have
happened to my son and to myself. One of the policemen involved stated that perhaps
we would have ended up dead. Thanks for all the help that has come my way. There
isn't a day that goes by that I reflect warmly on the kindness and the professional
assistance that was given to us for the many months that we were there.
To think that this assistance wouldn't be there for others is unfathomable. If there is
anything else I can do, I will. She would send newspaper clippings about her plight.
Anyway, this is from Sara, so watch for an e-mail from Sara and, again, thank you for
listening to me over and over, and we'll see you in Paia tomorrow night, and hopefully
bring more people to testify, because I think it's important. Thanks so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Stacey if you don't mind, John dela Cruz's testimony if you
could leave it with the staff.
MS. MONIZ: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Since you read it into the record, we'll keep John's statement for your
organization with the staff. Okay. Thank you very much for being here, Stacey. Bev.
- 10-
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MS. ZIGMOND: Good evening, Council Members, I'm Beverly Zigmond, and I work for
Women Helping Women on Lanai. I am the only domestic violence advocate on the
island.
Since I saw you all last year, my caseload has increased significantly, and unfortunately
the funds to allow me the time, to be paid for the time that I'm spending hasn't increased
at all.
I had hoped that some of my clients would come and testify, but obviously living in a
small community nobody wanted to be visible. When I talked with a particular client the
other day and told her we were going to come and ask for additional money she said I'll
write a letter for you, and so I would like to read that to you. I'm going to read it word for
word except where she mentions me by name I'm just going to say my advocate,
because it's not about me it's about being an advocate.
To all this may concern, I am a client of Women Helping Women. I have went through a
great deal of abuse from my husband. He broke my arms, a rib, and my nose. If my
advocate was not there to help, I would have been killed. I used to be homeless, no
power, no water, and as you can also tell no phone when all this happened to me. My
advocate helped me to get a house in town. I believe in my heart that if my advocate
wasn't here for me I would have lost my life. She is still always there when I call and
need support or even a ride to the store.
We need more funding here on Lanai. No one seems to understand that there are more
women like me who need Women Helping Women. We also need a shelter here for the
fact that when women are abused they have nowhere to go. The advocate has to call
the company and hope they have an empty apartment for us women. Can't you see
that domestic violence is a big problem on Lanai and we need funding? Please can't
you help us or will someone end up dead. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Bev. Any questions for Ms. Zigmond these evening, Members?
Thank you very much for being here Bev. Ricardo Saque [sic], and I'm sorry if I'm
mispronouncing your name.
MR. SAUQUE: Okay. Thank you for coming to our small Island of Lanai, and be aware of
what is going on with us over here. I'm a marriage and family therapist and -CHAIR HOKAMA: Ricardo, you, if you could please state your name for the record.
MR. SAUQUE: Ricardo Sauque.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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MR. SAUQUE: I'm a marriage family therapist, and I work with all these issues that, social
issues that concern the island. And we have a big problem here with domestic violence,
substance abuse, and sexual abuse. And all of them are part of the same family.
Many times it starts as domestic violence, goes to other branches like sexual abuse and
then substance abuse. Without breaking confidentiality, some of our clients they have
been sexual abused, and they go into substance abuse, and domestic violence follows
that.
Now, from domestic violence unless we do something in this island, we're going togo to
social violence. And we have the potential here to become like a south central L.A. We
have a lot of weapons here, a lot of people here who are violent by cultural traits, or by
desires just to dominate. We need help. That's why we are here. We need help. If you
don't want us to go into a very violent environment, please help us.
I'm here to testify in favor of two organizations, one is CDFL and they're doing a great
job here. They are requesting for $62,000.00 and that's manini money. If you can give
it to them it will be like giving them a million dollars, because they know how to use the
money. This is not the former March of Dimes where the executives pay themselves
horrendous amount of money. These people are day-by-day living too. They know
what's going on.
And the second one is to Women Helping Women. It happens to be that I'm a part-time,
I'm the boss for Beverly Zigmond, and I really would hate to lose her, but it would be for
the betterment of Lanai if she can get a full-time job with Women Helping Women.
We need your help, please. We're going to have a lot of violence here. Help us. Help
us to prevent this. We can still change things.
The leaders of the school are dedicated to help. The police force is here to help us, but
we need money. Particularly, I don't need the money, but my organization does need
the money at this point. But these two organizations CDFL and Women Helping
Women need the money. Thank you for being here. Please kokua with us. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Any questions for Ricardo? Next we have Bonnie
Gaspar.
MS. GASPER: Can you hear me ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, you need the microphone.
MS. GASPER: Oh, you do.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah.
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MS. GASPER: My name is Bonnie Gasper. I'm a nurse who stays at home to raise my
daughter, and I represent the community-at-Iarge and the Board of Directors for CDFL.
I've been on the board for about three years now, and I'm proud to be working with an
agency that addresses and tries to combat substance abuse here on Lanai. I'm here
tonight to ask for your support in granting the request to CDFL for $62,000 a year for
two years.
Lanai has always had limited funding for positive programs geared towards its youth
and families, but that's where Lanai needs the help the most. Before my daughter was
born, I worked here on the island as the employee health nurse for Castle & Cooke
Resorts. I learned how widespread the substance abuse problem was on the island
when I started working for CDFL and the people who work here.
The monies for this grant would be used to help fund the treatment program for the
people of Lanai who need it. CDFL has been active on the island for many years and I
feel strongly that if granted the money, CDFL could really make a strong impact on
substance abuse, juvenile programs, family programs, and benefit the community
overall.
Thank you for hearing us tonight, and I would like to ask, again, that you support the
$62,000 for CDFL. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Bonnie. Next we have Aunty Pua Paoa.
MS. PAOA: Good evening, Mr. Chairman Hokama and the County Board. My name is Pua
Paoa. My husband George and I lived on Maui over 40 years, and we retired to this
lovely island of Lanai. I was approached by one of the members to become a board
member for the CD, CDFL Board, and I've been with them for about three years.
Now, I work as a kupuna at the elementary school here, and I've been there for about
three years also. And my involvement with the CDFL is, is that I represent the Hawaiian
community, and I also work with the kids in school. It's an E Ola Pono Program, which
was designed by Kamehameha School, and I work with the elementary and the middle
school kids. So, I know these kids personally.
So, anyway I feel that Lanai is always the last island as far as monies, because we are
the small community, but this island really needs your help. The youth, the family, and
this year I see that we are requesting $62,000.00 per year for two years.
Now, these monies will assist our ongoing prevention educational program, community
mobilization and increasing our community's involvement in prevention and enforcement
efforts. These monies will help to match the efforts of the community support grant
through the office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention.
Again, I ask you, Members, to support the CDFL for their grant for $62,000.00. Mahalo.
- 13 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2004 (Lanai)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Paoa this evening? Thank you for being
here Pua. Ron McOmber.
MR. MCOMBER: Boy, how do you follow that, folks. When I picked up the budget, looked at
that pie indicator, I see a black line. I thought it was a mistake. How can we possibly
support this community with $200,000.00 in the budget, folks? It doesn't make any
sense whatsoever.
This community is hurting. We need support of our youth. We need support of our
seniors. Now you heard tonight we need support of Women Helping Women. Violent,
violent acts against them.
I mean this is heart wrenching. I would like to see this, every televised outside island
herein like this on Akaku. We see Makena, we see Makena, we see Makena. What the
hell's going on with the outside islands? We need to have other people understand
what's going on here.
We need in the budget, we need monies that Akaku will come here and film this stuff so
everybody understands what we're up against. No wonder nobody knows what the
heck's going on in Lanai. Nobody's going to here this except the people who were
sitting in this room.
We need support from this community, on this community from this Council and from
the County. After I get done with the pie, I'm going to go through a couple things that,
that's are something that's near and dear to my heart and that's drug intervention. A lot
of this stuff that we're having with the, with the mothers helping mothers and Women
Helping Women and whatever is drugs. Lots of it got to do with drugs.
We need canine both at the harbor, now that the harbor has become such an important
passage to Lanai. Do you realize that probably 55 to 60 percent of our guests that
come in the hotels now are coming by ferry? Airplanes have done us in. We can't
afford to fly anywhere, and if you do get on it the planes are broken, and, and they delay
it.
We're hurting over here folks. I know you can't do anything about the airlines, but you
can do something about the drugs, at least give us some help, at least with the dogs.
We need every port of entry into Lanai to be inspected for drugs, and it needs to be
serious. This is a serious problem.
We, I see our senior citizen center right down the street here is in shambles. How can
we put our senior citizens in a place and have their, have their daily lunch when their
icebox is broken and their stove is inadequate and, and it almost burned down about
three, three months ago, because of an electrical shortage. The roof needs to be
repaired, it needs to be painted, we need a long time lease with the company.
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Please kokua that. Our senior citizens don't deserve to be in that place. Okay. It is
really important to our kupuna, and I hate to tell you that it won't be long, I'm going to be
one of them. I know I put, I, I had this disguise on because you guys had the meeting at
six o'clock, and I had to work until six. So, I didn't know if you really recognize who this
was, but I didn't have my tank top.
I see in our budget that we have $200,000 for road repair. Are you aware that the
company is giving us a, a drainage plan, which is supposed to come out? We're
supposed to have a meeting on the 9th of next month -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. MCOMBER: -- a master drainage plan. Please don't let them do anything to our roads
until we find out what the hell we're going to do with the drainage plan. This sounds like
something they would do. They'd resurface it and then tear the roads up. So, let's not
waste that money.
And then let's go to that budget that, that I had looked at. I see $200,000.00 for this
year or through fiscal 2005. I see here a Lanai, Manele Fire Station. This is ludicrous.
Why should they get a special fire station down there? Have them put sprinklers in their
apartments, and in the homes that they build. We can't afford that. That's splitting this
community right down the middle. The next thing you know, they'll want their own
church down there. We want to be part of this community, and its severely being taken
away from it.
MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. MCOMBER: I know. I don't get to see these guys very often and I'm going to violate
every rule, and I apologize. You're not going to take this mike out of my hand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ron, Ron, Ron to be fair to everybody else -MR. MCOMBER: I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can, you can come back again-MR. MCOMBER: Let me go through the list real fast, and I'll get out of your hair. I'll go home.
Kidney dialysis is closing on Lanai, a water use development plan hasn't been done.
The community plan update needs to be done.
The youth center that we all voted on is no longer in existence, and we need that youth
center desperately. And our landfill, the same thing you're going to be talking about
after this meeting is over with, and the landfill on Molokai. Our landfill on Lanai is
ludicrous, folks. It's a health a hazard and we need a new landfill.
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I apologize for going over my time. I will go home and take a shower and clean up, and
thank you for your patience. And whatever you do, support our youth and our seniors,
and our ladies that are in trouble, and everybody you can because they are very
important to all of us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Ron. Joelle Aoki.
MS. AOKI: Good evening, Council Members, Chair Hokama. Thank you for coming to Lanai
to hear our concerns. My name is Joelle Aoki. I am the Executive Director for the
Coalition for Drug Free Lanai, Kumpang Lanai.
And this fiscal year the CDFL was faced with many challenges. However, with the
support of the County of Maui, CDFL accomplished great milestones in just a few
months.
In October of 2003, the CDFL was awarded a federal grant from the office of Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention, otherwise known as OJJDP, in the amount of
$100,000.00 per year for up to five years. And the final two years of those five years, it
is at a decreasing rate.
This grant is a community support grant, which requires one to one matching funds.
Through the support of efforts of the County of Maui, CDFL was able to acquire the one
to one match from financial and in kind support as well as other funding agencies for
fiscal year 2003-2004.
These monies are utilized to enhance and expand the ongoing Maui, Maui Partnership
Grant Programs which include the California Early Literacy Program for grades
kindergarten through senior, and E Ola Pono Program, and health and wellness
curriculum in grades four through eighth at the Lanai High and Elementary School.
Very special arts, mentoring based at the Lanai art program here on Lanai, the Hui Waa
o Lanai Canoe Club paddling for all ages, Maui Interscholastic League wrestling and
our upcoming judo program, and many drug and alcohol-free community activities within
the community and volunteer programs, just to name a few.
The CDFL provided 23,000, provided service to 23,468 duplicated individuals in 20032000,excuse me fiscal year 2003. The efforts mentioned are a small part of the CDFL
strategy to mobilize and collaborate with ongoing programs and efforts in, and our
efforts in drug and alcohol prevention for the Island of Lanai.
As a partner and a member of the Anti Drug Coalitions of America, we join in our
country's effort to partner, collaborate and build our coalitions to better serve our
communities in the war against drugs.
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Since February 2003, the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai has engaged in 38 formal
partnership agreements to mobilize our community with the faith, with the faith B sector,
business sector, and private sectors of our island.
The problems of alcohol and drug use, drug dealing and the absence of substance
abuse treatment for adults on Lanai have made it difficult for our community. The CDFL
has recognized that prevention and enforcement efforts lack constancy, consistency,
and manpower. For, it is for these reasons that the goals for our County partnership
grant requests -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. AOKI: -- this coming fiscal year are to increase adults, parents, employees and
community's involvement, involvement in prevention and enforcement efforts. In
addition, the CDFL will continue its efforts to obtain funding for out, adult outpatient
substance abuse treatment and prevention education.
In closing, I'd like to please request your full support of the Kumpang Lanai, Coalition for
Drug Free Lanai Partnership Grant request through the Maui County for $62,000.00 per
year for two years.
In addition, I'd like to ask for your support for Destination Lanai and their 3.5 million
through MV, Maui Visitors Bureau and it's funding for tourism for the Island of Lanai. As
our main industry tourism has made an impact on jobs for Lanai, and helps to keep our
community healthy. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Joelle. Questions for Ms. Aoki tonight? Thank you for being
here. Sheila Eligado. Okay, Sheila if you're not here we'll go through everyone's name
and we'll see if she's, if she returns. John Ornellas.
MR. ORNELLAS: Aloha, Chair Hokama and Council Members. Thank you for coming to
Lanai. I'm not going to read what I wrote, but you're all getting a copy of it.
I do want to say that, that it looks like this year might be one of our better years as far as
the economy. Lanai has gone without for a long, long time. Yes, we do have a new
police station being built, but there's so many other things that have been left on the
side, and you've heard most of it today.
I do want you to really support the CDFL. CDFL on Lanai is very, very strong. They're
the, the pit bull director. She's, she has, she's not hesitant to go and, and shake the
trees and, and get volunteers to fall ,out to help her out. And she's, she's a real good
director, and she's asking for $62,000.00 for the next two years.
That's a lot of money, but without CDFL on Lanai what do we have left? Nothing.
There's nobody on Lanai that does what CDFL does. So, I, you really need to support
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them. They're, like she was saying that she's involved in the, the education drug free
community activities, prevention education. We went to the drug summit together, and
she works very, very hard, and so does, so does her staff.
And it's very important, and there's, I noticed that Ron left, you guys better fix that senior
center quick. He's retiring this year, okay, and he's going to spend a lot of time there.
And I was wondering why he didn't say about the four-wheel drive or the all-wheel drive
fire trucks. So, you guys got away with that one this time. But, he is retiring this year
and he'll be spending a lot of time at the senior center, we hope.
The, the athletic department, Parks and Recreation, the Lanai Tennis Courts is starting
to show signs of age. The one's behind the County gym. The contractors who, who put
the new surface down a few years ago did a real good job, because the thing is holding
up very, very well. Though maintenance is a little weak, but it's time to resurface, not
resurface but to seal the court again, because it's now starting to, if we let it go any
more, any further, the cracks will start to develop and that, that kind of stuff.
The Fifth Street one, this is one, this is the one I really get a hard time with. It's because
it's, it's almost brand new.
I mean, we've worked on it for the last couple
years .. .(change tape) . .. of course the windscreens -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. ORNELLAS: -- the windscreens many of the tennis players on Lanai because of the way
the tradewinds run across that from north to south that we told them to put the
windscreens on the outside of the fence so that when the wind blows the, it pushes the
windscreen up against the chain link fence.
Of course, we don't know nothing here on Lanai, so they put it on the inside and so
every time the winds blow 20 to 30 around this place which is pretty frequent, the, the
tie wraps just break off. Right now there's one net missing. I don't where that went to
but it's not up. And, you know, they're always out there putting tie wraps on them.
So, instead of putting tie wraps just do it right. They build and they cut these little pukas
in it so the wind can go through. Well the wind goes through there and now it's starting,
all these little holes are starting to rip because of the wind. So, to eliminate that just put
it on the outside and let the, most of t.he time -MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. ORNELLAS: -- the tradewinds will push it in. A gate is broken off in the tennis courts but
I don't know where it went to but its not there. The backboards are all rotting. That is
one thing that didn't get replaced when we refurbished the courts. We used the old, the
old stuff but now its time, it's rotting off at the bottom, and the, and the, the rims are now
starting to fall off. So, that's all I got. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, John.
evening, Members? Thank you.

Any questions for Mr. Ornellas this, this·

Okay, and just by coincidence for those of you that would like to chat we have Mr. John
Buck, he's the Deputy Director of Parks and Recreation for the County of Maui. Mr.
Buck is to your right people. He's a real nice man. He's, he's here to do what he can to
assist the department end, and receive comments such as John's.
Okay, next we have Chelsea Trevino.
MS. CHELSEA TREVINO: Hello, I'm Chelsea Trevino. Thank you for coming to Lanai, again.
I know it's not easy getting here. Okay, it's easier for me to read, so I will read.
I am here for CDFL, and I am asking you to support CDFL in their full request for the
$62,000.00 for the Maui Community Partnership grant. CDFL is now a new partner with
the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention OJD, OJJDP, which is a
community supported federal grant. It is very important for us to acquire matching funds
to secure these federally funded monies, which as you all mentioned we're trying for five
years here, and this is a two-year funding we're asking for from you.
And this is in order for Lanai to bring awareness of the youth and dealing of drugs in our
community. These funds will help CDFL for further needs of the island in regards to
drug use and prevention. Some examples of the needs included, are outpatient
treatment, substance abuse treatment, and as mentioned many, many times before,
education and prevention of drug use and abuse.
I'm also in support of Women Helping Women. Beverly is doing a great job here. As
we've mentioned, she's being paid part-time to do a full-time 24-hour job. She's doing
the job that many people on Lanai would never step up to do. I get emotional because
there's a lot of abuse on this island, excuse me, and as you can see we had no Lanai
testifiers. She had to bring people from outside, because the problem is so bad here.
Excuse me.
And I also support Lanai Youth Center, because I have children who, who enjoy using
the youth center, and because of the drug problem we have here and the abuse
problems we have here, the youth center is a lot of times the only place kids can go to
feel safe or have something to do that's productive.
As well as I support the preschool, because I do have a little youngster who goes to
preschool, and preschool prices for Lanai as we've all heard are really low compared to
the rest of the State, but still living on Lanai is not cheap. And we did have an increase
in our, our preschool tuition last year because I know that they did have to make up
some monies.
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So, anyhow I know you have a hard job to do to decide who should get what, and no
one is more important than anyone else, but overall I think that, again, as Ron
mentioned sometimes it does, and let me mention I have grown up on Lanai since I was
four, and it does sometimes feel like Lanai is put on the wayside.
So, thank you again. CDFL, Women Helping Women, Youth Center, and preschool.
Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good job. Thank you, Chelsea. Okay, Erin Trevino .
. MS. ERIN TREVINO: Hi, my name is Erin Trevino. I am a Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai
Student Board Member. I am here to ask that you fund the $62,000.00 Maui County
Partnership Grant, which CDFL is applying for.
CDFL is a very important part of our community. There is no other agency providing
drug awareness and prevention for people of our ages.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Erin. Waynette Ho-Kwon.
MS. HO-KWON: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you and welcome to Lanai, again. I am
here on behalf of Destination Lanai, a sub-sector of the Maui Visitors Bureau. I'm here
to ask for lateral funding in the amount of 3.5 million dollars to the Maui Visitors Bureau.
As you know, we are under Maui Visitors Bureau as part of the Hawaii Visitors Bureau
and our main objective is to bring visitors here to Lanai. With the additional funding that
we did receive last year, or fiscal year '04, we were using that to do all of our
advertising, increased advertising which has really helped, because our website
visitlanai.net has increased 29.3 percent in just one year, and we'd like to attribute that
to all of the County dollars that were put into additional advertising.
Destination Lanai is also here in support for Aloha Festivals. The Aloha Festivals is a
three-day celebration here on Lanai. We'd like to request the lateral funding in '05 for
$10,000.00.
Destination Lanai also supports the following efforts and programs such as Women
Helping Women, Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai, the Lanai Youth Center, and E
Malama INa Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool. Thank you, again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Waynette. The list is so long, I got to take long time for write.
Okay, next we have Georgette Woolsey.
MS. WOOLSEY: Aloha, my name is Georgette Susu Woolsey. Thank you for coming, and
this is my first meeting with you guys and for us to go through this.
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I am the new island manager for Aloha Festivals this year, and I'd like to thank you for
your support for the all the past years along with the other islands, Molokai, Hana.
Hana have their own island, I understand, and the Maui County.
I'm here to ask your, our request for $10,000 lateral funds for 2005. Excuse me, I'm
nervous.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Take your time. Take your time.
MS. WOOLSEY: And I'm here on behalf of Destination, Destination Lanai, Coalition for Drug
Free Lanai, and a preschool, I'm also supporting them. Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai
there is $62,000 per year for three years in support of them.
For the past couple years, the Lanai Community Benefit Fund has helped drug free
alcohol celebration in the gym to help keep the kids off the street on that night of
graduation.
However, for the past years the money has been depleting and this year we were
rejected funding for that. We went to CDFL to ask for funding to help us support, and
through the graces they are helping us out this year, and hopefully continue to carry on
for the rest of the years. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Woolsey, this evening? Thank you,
Susu. Good job. Good job. Gregory Palolo.
MR. PALOLO: Hi, I'm Gregory Jordan Palolo, and I'm here to, I am ten years old, and I'm here
to testify for the Lanai Youth Center so we can get enough money to keep it open and,
because if it wasn't open the kids of Lanai couldn't have a fun and safe place to stay.
Please help support the Lanai Youth Center. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA; Thank you, Gregory. Great job. Diane Irons.
MS. IRONS: Hello. Thank you for coming. My name is Diane Irons. I'm the Executive
Director of the Lanai Youth Center. The Lanai Youth Center is the only organization on
Lanai that provides free supervised and structured activities for kids ages eight through
17, six days a week, ten hours a day.
We not only provide recreational activities, but we implement two science based best
practice prevention education programs. We have a mentoring program. We also do
tutoring and homework assistance.
We have developed many partnerships on the island. For instance, Trilogy has taken
our kids on a whale watch where they would normally not be able to afford it. Castle
and Cooke has allowed us to use their archery facilities, and we've started a junior
archery team. They're also aSSisting us with starting a golf team.
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Expeditions allows us 12 free youth roundtrip tickets a month so we can take our kids to
Maui. They've been to the Ocean Center. They've gone on the Reef Dancer. They've
done a lot of things that we don't have here on the island for the kids.
Other local businesses have provided donations of merchandise or cash donations. So,
you can see we have the support of the community, and I'm here to ask you to support
the local Lanai Youth Center. I also ask that you support the preschool, coalition, and
all the other youth groups on the island. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You, you not forgetting something Diane?
MS. IRONS: We have a facility that's a doublewide trailer. Its' about 900 square feet. It
supports five staff members, all of our equipment, and the useable space for the youth
is about 300 square feet. We have monies to buy about ten computers, and right now
we only have one for the youth, because that's all the space we can, you know, that's all
the space that's available for that.
So, we would like to add another doublewide facility. I don't know if you know where we
are. We're between the, the County gym and the tennis courts. So, we're trying to get
another doublewide trailer. We got quotes. It's $83,000.00 for the trailer. We have
commitments from the community for 20,000 right now, so that's another thing I'm
asking for. If the County could please support us in getting more space for our kids.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Diane.
MS. IRONS: Thank you, Riki.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And if you have time after the meeting, maybe you, you can have a chance
to chat with Mr. Buck as our Deputy Director, and he may be able to help get some
accurate information with you, okay. Thank you. Lorna Sanches.
MS. SANCHES: Hello and welcome to Lanai.
employee at the Lanai Youth Center.

My name is Lorna Sanches, and I am an

The youth center is open six days a week until 9:00 p.m., offering an open door policy
for the children to come, talk story, open up and share a lot of things with us. We not
only have, the children don't come to the youth center only to play. We implement
programs that teaches them to make right choices, deal with peer pressure, educate
them to be drug free, and also we teach our teenage girls self-esteem, self-esteem, to
respect their bodies, respect themselves so that we don't have, we can break that
continuation of abuse, women getting abused.
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This weekend we're taking nine youths to Maui for the Teen Expo. The children, nine
youths, six girls, six females and three males, will go over on Friday. Stay overnight in
the Maui Beach Hotel. Friday night they will attend a teen dance, and that is from six to
ten thirty, where they can go, you know, get exposed to other things than just what
Lanai has. And then on Saturday morning from nine until two they will attend the Teen
Expo in the War Memorial.
I ask that you support the youth center so that we can continue to provide a safe,
structured, nurturing place for our children to come and hang out, because as you can
see, Lanai really don't have much for our children. There's no bowling alley, there's no
game room.
We, the youth center is where the children come. They come there, they open up, they
share a lot of things with us. We have the first contact with the silent victims. Children
that are in foster homes, children that come from abuse in the family, children that have
parents who are in rehab. We have first contact with them.
So, I ask that you support the Lanai Youth Center so that we may provide, to continue
to provide a safe and nurturing place for them. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lorna. Next we have Mr. Pat Reilly. Okay, anyone else, we're
getting close to the end, so anyone else who hasn't signed up, or Victor, if you want to
speak on behalf of your organization, please do so, okay. I give everyone, I'm giving
everyone notice you need to sign up so we can make sure you have your opportunity to
testify. Mr. Reilly.
MR. REILLY: Thank you. First, thank you very much for coming to Lanai. Secondly, I would
like to say that what I've seen tonight shows you, to me, that this community is very
dedicated emotionally and intellectually to try and make something happen here for the
benefit of families and children. Its tough.
Two things, three things I heard today. Price of gas, everybody gripes. I heard on the
radio the price of gas would have to. go up 32 percent to be the same price accounted
for inflation as 1981. Now, that's pretty shocking when you hear it. What it says to me
is our dollar is not going as far as it used to, which means we allocate dollars but it
doesn't go as far. The same is going to be true for human services, capital
improvements, or anything.
I've sat in the senior center when it's raining and watch the water come out of the roof. I
have very deep respect for people that are working with violence. Not everybody can
do that and stick with it. That is a very tough profession.
I went to the education summit this weekend at Kapolei High School, and as you can
imagine, Lanai, the famous words is not on the matrix. It is very difficult to have policy
makers, and I really respect the County, because you're much closer to us than the
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State is, but to understand how difficult it is to generate programs for children and
families on Lanai. It is very difficult and very expensive.
I flew out Friday night. The plane was four hours late. The eight o'clock plane got to
Honolulu at midnight. Tried to come back Saturday. Made two passes and had to go
back because of fog on the runway. I had to stay at a hotel for an additional 80 bucks.
There were people on that plane that could not afford that.
Lanai, there are only three planes flying. That's what they tell me. Island Air has only
three planes, and some days they only have two. Without Expeditions, we'd be in deep
kim chee.
And I just say that because the business of doing government, and trying to get help for
families and getting kids out of here to get more exposure is very difficult, and so any
support that you can give would be deeply appreciated.
And these people work at the school. These are not just one hat people. These are
multi-hatted people, and they know this community, and they work hard to make this
community.
I'm going to touch on three subjects that haven't been covered. I'm a little concerned
about the idea that we're going to have two classes of community here. We're going to
have a wealthy community, and we're going to have the average guys. And this is a -MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. REILLY: -- personal statement. I think we have to watch for that. And that's all I'll say
about that is just that I'm very cautious that we don't split this community into two
halves. There are many people that are willing to help in the community, but 1think we
have to be cautious about that.
I appreciate the new police station. 1 appreciate the company in supporting the
drainage plan and I, like Ron, would be a little cautious before we pave the roads we
want to be sure that the drainage plan is adequate. That we don't mess up the drainage
patterns by paving the roads, and the, I know the company and hopefully the County
are working together on that.
I'm concerned about property taxes for people on fixed incomes. I know you're trying to
address that, but, and I really appreciate that" but 1 think, again, not to split the
community I think that would be a big problem.
We're still, there's P to 20. Preschool through the grade 20 is our concept for the
school, and if, and we're trying to develop a combination -MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
- 24-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2004 (Lanai)

MR. REILLY: -- where we can put education and human services in one area and integrate it.
We, we about have to take care of children 24/7. This is not a matter of just school day,
five days a week. This community really needs to take care of children 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, and anything you can do to help us with your contacts and other
agencies, I'm sure would be very appreciated. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Pat. Kay Okamoto.
MS. OKAMOTO: Good evening and welcome to Lanai. It's really good to see so many people
out. I've been to some of these hearings. Some of you who have been around for a
while, and there is two or three people that used to come. So, it's great to see so many
people out.
I can't stress enough the social issues that tonight you've heard about, and obviously
the support for all of the social issues.
I am here as the Chairperson of the Destination Lanai, which is more of an economic
issue. The Destination Lanai is a member under Maui, Maui Board, no now I'm saying
Realtors, Maui Visitors Bureau, which does receive funding from you. And we receive
our funding from them.
We do many things that are, is to help the whole community, because we are definitely
a tourist related community. And so, the things that Waynette is doing as our main
person here in that role is, has been very helpful in letting others know that we're not
just two resorts, but we do have a lot of other business, and a lot of other things in the
community.
Also, I'd like to support continued funding for the program, which I believe, is under the
Office of Economic, the Focus Maui Nui Program. They were able to come over and we
did quite a few sessions with Lanai people. We had very good responses, and so we'd
like to support continued funding of the Focus Maui Nui.
We are asking for a separate report pulled out of that huge report saying what it is that
the Lanai people who went to the various meetings, what they are asking for, and the
kinds of things that will help them. And so, we do ask, I ask for support for that. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kay, and thank you for participating in Focus Maui Nui and
everyone else. Next we have Catherine Gentile. Take your time. Take your time.
MS. GENTILE: I'm Catherine Gentile, and I want to say good evening, and thank you fall for
coming. We would like to ask you for your continued funding support for the MEO
seniors. This is the only transportation we have.
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We know you understand the importance of having MEO transportation for us. Mahalo,
again, for your support.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Catherine.
MS. GENTILE: You're welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nani Watanabe.
MS. WATANABE: Aloha, Budget Chair Riki Hokama and the Maui County Budget Committee.
Welcome to Lanai. My name is Nani Watanabe. I am the new Cultural Resource
Manager for Castle and Cooke. It's an honor and a privilege to be back on the island,
and to be able to work with my community of Lanai.
I'm here on behalf of Aloha Festivals. For the past four years, I've been deeply involved
with Aloha Festivals, and I've seen many changes that occurred for the festival. It took
a lot of leadership for the managers of the festivals to reorganize and recreate such a, a
fun festivity. And it also brings community together to be able to work together, and also
to not only reach out to the, to the youth but also to our elders. And so, I ask for your
continued support to our Aloha Festivals.
And then I'm also here to support Destination Lanai. These past few months I've had
the privilege and honor to work with Waynette and share with the riders that have been
coming to visit Lanai about the culture of Lanai and its heritage. And being a native of
Lanai and being born and raised here, it is vitally important for me to actually bring the
history of Lanai back, and to be able to share it with others outside of the Lanai
community. Mahalo and welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Nani. Darrell Stokes.
MR. STOKES: Aloha. I'm Darrell Stokes and welcome, and thank you for coming to Lanai.
Tonight I'd like to speak in support of watershed protection funding.
Now, I think it's safe to say that all of us in this room know that today watershed
protection is, is not something that all the counties should do. It's something we have to
do. And right here in Lanai I, I also think its safe to say that we, we are undertaking
probably the biggest singular effort throughout the State in protecting our watershed.
We are building a, a deer-proof fence at the 2,000 foot elevation around Lanaihale, and
this is not only a very extensive project, it's also very expensive. And, and we do need
all the support we can get. We, we do have some Federal and, and State grant
fundings, and with the County funding, you know, that only helps, you know.
Right now we are trying to complete phase I of three phases of fencing for our project.
And it is very expensive, you know, because of the terrain we're working in, it's costing
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us over $100,000.00 a mile to build this fence. So, we can use all the funding we can
get. And, again, thank you for coming.
And now I'm going to switch hats, okay. I also ask you to support the, the Fire and
Public Safety Department's budget. I am Lanai's representative on the Fire and Public
Safety Commission. You know, I know in that area there can never be enough money,
but I think you know already but I would like to point out that on Lanai, we have only one
fire station. There's nobody else you can call to for help. If we ever get a fire, we're on
our own.
And I know it wasn't proposed in this budget; but I would like to plant the seed that it's
starting, that we get another station on Lanai. And these are substation, you know, like
at Pukoo on Molokai, they have a little substation. We gotta start looking at that real
soon. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Darrell. Any questions for Mr. Stokes? Question, Darrell hold
on.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good evening, Mr. Stokes. In your testimony on the watershed
protection funding, you talked about Federal and State as well as County support. Are
you getting any support from the company at all?
MR. STOKES: On, all, all these grants that we have is matching grants. So the company has
to match the grants. And, so they have been matching, you know, up to date there,
they've like matched about a million dollars already.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good. Well, thank you very much. I didn't hear it in the first part.
MR. STOKES: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEBER KANE: Thank you.
MR. STOKES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One last question there since, you know, you're the conseNation manager
for the company. Other parts of Maui we have invasive species problems, miconia,
hisana [sic], very, very troublesome for us. Fireweed, which is really hurting the, the
ranchers, the guys with the big pastures, the potential flowers and what not. We, we
have a similar problem on Lanai?
MR. STOKES: Thank goodness we don't have miconia. And we do have fountain grass, and,
and we trying to nip that at the bud right now. And we also trying to get funding to bring
people over to help us get the, get rid of this fountain grass. But we also have a lot of
alien invasive species. We got waiwi, we got eucalyptus, we got ironwood, you know,
granted all those plants has helped in the past. It helped, you know, reclaim the soil
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and it helped stop runoff. But today we're looking at trying to capture the most moisture
and water we can.
So, eventually in the long term conservation plan for the island, eventually we going to
even start removing waiwi. eucalyptus, ironwood, and, and replant with natives. But
right now to just answer your question, yeah, the fountain grass is starting to become a
problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Stokes. Anything for Mr. Stokes? Okay,
thanks for being here Darrell.
MR. STOKES: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate it.
MR. STOKES: Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Bryan Plunkett.
MR. PLUNKETT: Chairman Hokama, present Finance Committee Members, thank you for
coming and for listening to me. It's my first time appearing before you, but I'm working
with Darrell in conservation efforts on Lanai, and I'm here to also urge you to support
the watershed protection programs.
And, but just to digress slightly. About 11 years, or actually more than that, 12 years
ago, I first came to Lanai, and one of the local residents told me that, you know, this is
the last paradise in Hawaii, and I believed him. And I find myself in conservation trying
to protect the watershed, and I feel that I am really privileged and fortunate to be in that
department.
And so, not only the watershed that we need to protect, but as the other testimonies
show that the families need to be protected, the Coalition for Drug Free, Free Lanai, the
youth center. They all need to be really funded, and to preserve the unique lifestyle on
Lanai.
But basically, again, the, the watershed is something that's vital to all of us, not only
those who come and visit the island, but basically the residents can benefit from it and,
again, the, the watershed is really the only one we've got.
And so, as Darrell said costs are mounting and we need to get to this first phase, and
begin to work and not only protecting it by restoring the native species that's
endangered thereby also intrinsically enhance the, the beauty of the island. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA; Thank you, Bryan. Any questions for Mr. Plunkett this evening? Okay,
thank you. Kris Kahihikolo.
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MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Good evening, everyone. Riki, nice to see you. Thank you for taking the
time to come to Lanai and listen to the needs of this small community. We really
appreciate you folks being here. My name is Kris Kahihikolo. I'm the program
administrator for E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai preschool.
Our preschool program is a licensed nationally accredited and Federally and State
registered as a non-profit organization. Our main goal is to provide a safe and nurturing
developmentally appropriate preschool that is affordable for all of the Lanai's children
ages two through six.
The preschool is governed by a volunteer board of directors that is served by interested
parents and community members. The program is staffed by eight employees, three of
which have degrees in education and four in which are working towards degrees
through MCC.
Our successes at Keiki 0 Lanai continue with each passing day. We maintain full
enrollment with a wait list. We are also happy to announce that we've gone through
reaccredidation process. This prestigious recognition has been achieved by only seven
percent of the early childhood programs nationwide. The National Association for the
education of young children accreditation is a rigorous voluntary process by which early
childhood programs demonstrate that they meet national standards of excellence.
Because our program is nationally accredited we need to maintain a high level of quality
of standards. All of the employees that work directly with the children have dedicated
themselves to taking early childhood classes for the last two years, and will be taking
another class in the month of September.
With this in mind, the preschool has even more qualified teachers who work 11 months
out of the year. Therefore, we need to bring the wages up to a competitive level to
insure that we can keep the required number of employees and not to lose them to
higher paying jobs.
I cannot stress to you and the other members of the Maui County Council, the
importance of insuring the successful operation of Lanai's only preschool facility.
Research tells us that the most critical years of life for learning are between birth and
eight years of age. During this time, attitudes about self and others, values concerning
life and learning are developed within, excuse me, with each, that will last a lifetime.
Yet in today's society, parents are having difficulty providing for their young children with
optimal caring, learning environment. Today, more than 60 percent of the families in
Maui County are juggling the demands of work and family. Quality early childcare
programs depend primarily on tuition to operate, but are now struggling, excuse me, to
stay in business to serve families.

- 29 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2004 (Lanai)

Consequently, many of the children are being placed in unstimulating, unsafe learning
environments and according to research this can adversely affect children's readiness
for formal schooling or kindergarten.
On the other hand, quality early childhood programs have been proven to make a
positive impact on a child's development. Quality early childhood programs can benefit
the family because its members go to work each day secure in the knowledge that their
children are in good hands. They benefit employers, because their workers can focus
on the job without worrying about the welfare of their children.
Quality early childhood programs benefits society, because they have been found to
save dollars in later years in social and remedial services.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: We also understand that the families of Lanai have limited income
resources to survive from day to day. I know all of you are familiar with the Maui Voices
Needs Assessment Study, and as indicated by the report, the number two and three
needs of the County can specifically be addressed by the preschool.
Quality education and training as well as services for the special needs children and
families is our specialty. Eighty-five percent of the child development occurs in the first
five years. Substance abuse prevention intervention is exactly what we teach our
children during this time by allowing them positive learning experiences that help them
to create a positive self image and giving children positive ways to handle anger,
express their feelings and exactly what prevention methods are needed.
Because the preschool has proven to be a quality worthwhile, vital part of the
community I ask for your continued support for this fiscal year and the year to come. I
would also to thank, I would also like to thank you for your time and your attention to the
past needs of the Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool. Without your help and assistance, the
program would not be able to provide the quality, care, and education to Lanai's
youngest residents. Thank you very, very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kris. Thank you, Kris. Any questions for Kris this evening,
Members? If not, thank you.
Are there anyone else that would like an opportunity to speak because the farthest
person that came here tonight, I can tell you, I'm looking at her, came from Hana, Geri
Carroll, sitting right there. So, she came a long way to join us with her husband Bob .
. • .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ••
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Lanai, I can just share with you what I've shared with the other districts
such as Molokai. Lanai generates about two million dollars a year in property taxes,
okay. Just the fire department is about $900,000.00 a year, the existing station. With
police, fire, public works, recreation, you're looking at four to five million dollars that
comes back to Lanai every year when we give two million dollars.
So, I just share that with you that Maui is, it takes myself and all of my colleagues here
to reappropriate funds that places like West Maui and South Maui generates a lot of
dollars that we bring back to Molokai, East Maui and Lanai.
Now, I don't want you to think that the Members don't think about Lanai. They really do.
They really do, okay. And then as far as the gas tax is concerned, yes, we did raise
your gas tax last year. There's one thing that I wish, that I want you to know, every
penny you pay in the County gas tax stays in the district. So, all the gas you buy here,
whatever tax is collected stays in the Lanai highway fund. It doesn't go back to MauL It
doesn't go to Molokai. It doesn't go to Hana. It, it is the same way with all the other
districts, okay.
But I can tell you for us to do repaving that you're going to see shortly, my colleagues
helped support us to get Maui dollars to use with Lanai dollars to do the road, road
project.
So, everything else, youth programs, senior programs, I am grateful that we have at
large Council Members, because every single one of these people here this evening,
although they don't live on Lanai like we do, are your Council people too. Rather if from
Haiku, Wailuku, East Maui, West Maui, Kahului, they are all your Council Members too.
And, and for me that makes a difference when I come and ask them to help support
Lanai programs.
So, thank you very much, for one, for being here tonight and letting people know we
have concerns, we have needs. It's important. Please think about it, and we ask for
support in funding. I think you've done a great job.
For those that have had County assistance in the past, I can tell you, you did a great
job. All I can tell you from what we've heard is that every district so far that we've gone
to has a lot more needs than we have money. Every district is the same. Every district
wants more, and fortunately Maui people have been very generous in providing those
tax dollars.
So, all I can tell you is I wish we had the easy job of telling everybody yes, and we had
an unlimited amount of, of money. We don't. So, I'm going to be real up front with you.
Some people are going to have no for an answer. It's just, you know, we're just going to
do the best we can, and take everybody's concern into account before we make any
final decision.

- 31 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maul

March 29, 2004 (Lanai)

But I think you need to know that Lanai does contribute a lot to the County. We bring
back a lot more than we contribute back to Lanai, and that's because we have people
such as these that sit before you this evening.
So, are there any questions? We hear you, everyone's concerns about property taxes,
Pat. So, I can tell you we have not completed our work regarding property tax reform.
We started. We haven't completed it. We will continue to do our best to do the
improvements.
Other than that, Lanai, thank you very, very much for being here. What you've shared
with us this evening is very important. We will take that into account. And we wish all of
you good health, God's speed, and thank you for being here this evening.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Meeting adjourned .. . (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: WKN, DAM, CMT)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

7:40 p.m.
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